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Jones, Jessica

From: Denise Hill <faire@sonic.net>
Sent: Thursday, November 14, 2024 10:17 AM
To: Jones, Jessica; Murray, Susie
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Follow-up to LMA Process Changes and DRB Meeting
Attachments: Suggested Changes and Additions to the Processing Review Procedures for Landmarks and 

Districts.docx

Good Morning, 

Attached are my suggestions for changes/additions to the documents we reviewed in our meeting earlier this 
month. 

Additionally, I join many others in my concern that the increase in permit fees for residents who live in historic 
homes and/or districts will result in homeowners by-passing applying for permits and the critical review 
process. In fact, the recent exorbitant increase could be considered discriminatory since it only applies to a 
specific group of city residents based on their location within the city. I would strongly urge the city to roll back 
the fees to what they were prior to July 1, 2024 or eliminate them entirely. The majority of those living in our 
designated historic districts are young families and seniors – two demographics that do not have significant 
cash reserves. Maintaining and upgrading a home that is 100+ years old is already more costly for the owner 
of such a home. Home improvement costs are at an all-time high and insurance companies have started 
dropping fire insurance coverage for these residents with older homes requiring them to purchase expensive 
fire insurance from the State.  Imposing any additional fees on these home owners becomes a deterrent to 
maintaining our finite historic home inventory and negatively affects the value of properties along with Santa 
Rosa’s cultural and built history. I would like to suggest that the city remove the term “subsidizing” when 
covering the cost of the LMA permit process and replace it with “investing”. There are many advantages to 
“investing” in these neighborhoods not the least of which by doing so supports first-time home buyers, senior 
housing, and the attraction to visitors who enjoy the unique history of a place when traveling typically resulting 
in a longer stay. 

Please reach out with any questions. 

Best, 
Denise Hill 
707-332-1966
Preservation is simply having the good sense to hold on to things
that are well designed that link us to our past in a meningful way.

From: Jones, Jessica <jjones@srcity.org>  
Sent: Friday, November 01, 2024 9:02 AM 
To: Denise <faire@sonic.net>; Brian Meuser <bmeuser@comcast.net> 
Cc: Cappie Garrett <cappiegarrett@gmail.com>; Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org> 
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: LMA Process Changes 

Thank you all for your quick response.  In looking at the availability for each of you, looks like the best time will be 
Tuesday at 1 p.m.  I will send an invitation out.  I am assuming you would prefer to meet in our office, rather than via 
Zoom, so I have reserved the conference room in the PED offices.  Please come to the front counter at PED and ask for 
Susie or myself.   

Attachment 11



Suggested Changes and Additions to the 
Processing Review Procedures 
  

Pages 32 and 33 – Landmark Alteration Guidelines – Demolition 

1.b. Economic Hardship 

 Replace “Design Review Board” with “DRPB” if merge is approved. 

1.c. Insignificant Accessory Buildings, and 1e. Landmarks and Contributing Buildings 

 Where it is stated a submittal of a historic resource survey prepared by a qualified professional  

o Define “qualified professional” 

o Strongly encourage the City staff select the “qualified professional” for all historic resource 

surveys rather than the applicant as a qualified professional hired by a the applicant can easily 

become unbiased when the applicant is both selecting them and paying them for this service.. 

1.d. Noncontributing Buildings 

 Add after “(one whose design is consistent with the Guidelines for new Construction. 

 ADD: and with a complementary, contemporary design and construction) or… based on chapter 20‐58.010. E. 

Purpose. verbiage below: 

 

 



Page 34 – Mitigation Measures– c. Moving a Building within a Preservation District 

Add: “Fourth, a housing unit is preserved. Fifth, a large amount of building debris is 
kept out of our local landfill.” 

 

CHAPTER 20-58 – HISTORIC AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION 

 

20-58.050 A. What qualifies as a modification of a preservation district? For example: now 
that all the historic structures on the entire block in the St. Rose Preservation District owned by Catholic 
Charities have been destroyed, the district map should be altered. Is this considered a “modification”? 
Who would pay for the process for modification approval and the cost to revise City documents? Would 
it be the applicant(s) for the Caritas Center and Caritas Homes development or does the City initiate the 
modification needed?  

In the case of an application to terminate the landmark designation of a structure, would 
the applicant need to provide a current historic survey? 

 

20-58.050 I. Add: Enforcement performed by City Code Enforcement Department so 
surrounding homeowners know who to reach out to if a landmark or other property isn’t being 
maintained. 

20-58.060 C. Change the word “may” to “must” in this sentence: 

“A Major Landmark Alteration Permit may be approved or denied by the DRPB.” 

 

C.1. Director-Level Landmark Alteration Permit. 

b. Contributor, #2: Remove this verbiage as it should be at a Major Review Level if 
visible from the public right-of-way: 

…”or changing the location of existing windows or doors”  

Or add: “if not readily visible from the public right-of-way”  

 

C.2. Minor Landmark Alteration Permit. 

a. Painting of previously unpainted materials…Remove: “stone or brick”. Based on the 
Secretary of Interiors Standards for Historic Buildings:  Applying paint or other coatings 
such as stucco to masonry that has been historically unpainted or uncoated to create a 
new appearance is NOT recommended. 
https://www.nps.gov/crps/tps/rehab‐guidelines/rehabilitation‐guidelines‐1997.pdf 
 

d. “Removing or enclosing an existing porch or adding a new porch on the front elevation…” 
should be under Major Landmark Alteration Permit. 
 
 



20.60.060. Design Review and Preservation Board. 
B. #1-5 Replace “should” with “must”. 
#3. Further define “interest in local history” by adding or replacing with “by writing 
articles or books or producing webinars on local history” and/or “participating on the board of a 
local history organization”, “participating in “new preservation district surveying” and/or 
“experience in assessing and cataloging historic resources”.  
 
I also want to go on record as supporting removing the restriction that council members 
can’t go outside their district to find community members to serve on the CHB, DRB, 
and any merged version of these two boards. The qualifications required to perform 
satisfactory reviews for applicants requires the ability for outreach to a wider scope of 
candidates. 
 
E. Regular meetings. How many meetings can a board member miss before they are 
removed from the board? 
 
G. Authority and duties. 
3.e. Compile and maintain a current register of all designated landmarks and 
preservation districts. Add: Available on the CHB/DRB pages of the City website. 
 
 
Table 6-1 – Appeal Review Authority 
 
Add: Both the Landmark Alteration Permit Director and Zoning Administrator shall 
attend at least one course on historic preservation in-person or online annually.  
 
Such courses are offered by the California Preservation Foundation for a little as $150. They 
currently are offering: “Bootcamp: The California Historical Building Code” and had another  
course offered earlier this year: “Historic Districts Explained”. 
 
https://californiapreservation.org/programs/webinars/ 
 
 
Additionally, this seems like the right time for the city to get Certified Local 
Government” designation.  
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Jones, Jessica

From: Murray, Susie
Sent: Wednesday, December 11, 2024 10:42 AM
To: Jones, Jessica
Cc: Brian Meuser
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] CHB and DRB Consolidation

Jess, 
 
I’m not sure if this went through the Planning Commission email, and I thought you might like to review Brian’s 
comments too.   
 
Brian, 
 
Thank you for all the work you’ve put into this.  Santa Rosa’s lucky to have you. 
 
Sus 
 
Susie Murray | Supervising Planner | Staff Liaison to the Cultural Heritage Board 
Planning and Economic Development |100 Santa Rosa Avenue, Room 3 | Santa Rosa, CA 95404 
Tel. (707) 543‐4348 | Fax (707) 543‐3269 | SMurray@srcity.org 
 

 
 

From: BRIAN MEUSER <bmeuser@comcast.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, December 10, 2024 7:42 AM 
To: Murray, Susie <SMurray@srcity.org> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] CHB and DRB Consolidation 
 

Hi Suzie  
   
Here's the letter I sent to each member of the Planning Commission.  
   
Dear Chair Weeks and members of the Planning Commission  
   
Thank you for considering my comments related to the Landmark Alteration process improvements 
and Cultural Heritage Board and Design Review Board Consolidation.  I’m going to address three 
main components as outlined below.  
   
Landmark Alteration Process Improvements  
   
In general, I am very supportive of the proposed streamlining changes.  However, I do have some 
concerns for your consideration.  
   
When the Cultural Heritage Board was created in 1988, its make-up included a professional Licensed 
Architect, a Licensed General Contractor, a Licensed Engineer, and a Practicing Archaeologist or an 
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Architectural Historian or Historian.  The Planning Department relied on the professionalism and 
insights of this board for improved decision making related to Landmark Alterations.  
   
Currently, both the Cultural Heritage Board and Design Review Board do not include the professional 
associations originally envisioned. This is due impart to the City’s change to district elections for 
council seats and the difficulty in finding qualified, licensed individuals who are willing to volunteer to 
serve on these boards.  
   
The proposed zoning code changes would move many of the decisions previously made by the 
Cultural Heritage Board to either the “Director” or “Zoning Administrator.” Many of the decisions made 
regarding Landmark Alterations are not black and white and live in areas of grey.  Let’s take a real-life 
example:  A single family home of 1,000 square feet in the Burbank Gardens Preservation District 
needs its 90-year-old shingles replaced, and the home’s current shingle design is no longer available. 
To have the original shingles manufactured will cost $10 a shingle and total around $25,000 for the 
entire house.  Alternative, more affordable shingles are available for about one-third the cost.  If the 
property owner proceeds with the alternative shingles, will this be a Director Level Permit or, because 
of the change of materials, a Minor Landmark Alteration Permit?  
   
My concern is how a determination of whether a decision is Director level or a Minor Landmark 
Alternation and how consistency in these types of decisions be achieved.  
   
With the change in make-up of the boards to more at-large members and with the empowering of the 
Director and Zoning Administrator to make decisions, there should be a commitment to ensure that 
staff members have the knowledge and training to make appropriate and consistent decisions. Please 
consider recommending to the City Council that resources be provided to ensure that staff making 
Director and Zoning Administrator decisions have the training needed to ensure that preservation 
goals outlined in the general plan and zoning code are achieved.  
   
   
Cultural Heritage Board and Design Review Board Consolidation  
   
In general, I am supportive of the new, consolidated board. The new board will review Major 
Landmark Alteration Permits that involve additions to single family structures 500 square-feet or 
greater and additions to non-residential or multi-family residential structures of 5,000 square-feet or 
greater or small projects that involve significant changes to the structure.  
   
In the past, the Design Review Board and the Cultural Heritage Board have often had differing views 
on commercial LMA projects within historic districts.  This is understandable as the Statement of 
Purpose of the Design Review Board and the Cultural Heritage Board have different goals.  The 
Design Review Board considers the location, design, site plan configuration and overall effect of the 
proposed projects upon the surrounding properties.  The Cultural Heritage Board considers the 
historic preservation of the cities historic landmarks as well as identifying historic landmarks and 
promoting historic preservation.  Additionally, because there are areas in the historic districts that 
have a Downtown Station Area Plan overlay, the Design Review Board may see these areas as 
opportunities for new development where the Cultural Heritage Board may feel these areas need to 
be protected from development.  Height of the structure has been the biggest issue in the past.  
   
   
   
My concern is that the professional make-up of this board needs to reflect the Statement of Purpose 
of both the DRB and the CHB and ensure the goals of both boards are reflected.  It is important the 
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professional qualifications of the board members reflect this in the consolidated board’s design. Along 
with the proposed zoning changes, please consider recommending that the City Council ensure their 
appointees meet these necessary qualifications.  In addition, please consider recommending the City 
Council appropriate the necessary funds to allow for training of the members of the new Design 
Review/Cultural Heritage Board.  
   
Landmark Alteration Fees  
   
Fees are not your purview but I feel they need to be mentioned given the relevance to meeting 
preservation goals.  You’ll recall that fees for alterations in preservation districts increased 
significantly on July 1, 2024.  
   
   
   

Type of Fee  

   

Prior to July 1, 2024  

   

After July 1, 2024  

   

Concept Review  

   

$0  

   

$2,088  

   

Neighborhood Meeting  

   

$1,253  

   

$2,088  

   

Minor Landmark Alteration Permit  

   

$409  

   

$8,830  

   

Major Landmark Alteration Permit  

   

$1041  

   

$17,762  

   

CHB Meeting  

   

$533  

   

$1,219  

   

   
   
If these fee changes are not addressed, the resulting negative effects will make the proposed zoning 
code changes moot as owners of historic properties may no longer get permits, do work without a 
permit, move out of the historic district, not move into a historic district or seek action to remove the 
historic designation from their neighborhood.  
   
Please consider recommending the City Council reduce or eliminate fees for alterations of historic 
buildings to encourage property owners to get permits and to ensure changes to historic properties 
are properly reviewed.  
   
Thank you for considering these comments.  
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Brian Meuser  
Former Chairman of the Cultural Heritage Board (2019-June 2024)  
   



From: Denise Hill
To: _PLANCOM - Planning Commission
Cc: Jones, Jessica
Subject: [EXTERNAL] 11.2 PUBLIC HEARING - LANDMARK ALTERATION PROCESS
Date: Friday, December 6, 2024 9:44:48 AM

Good Morning Planning Commissioners,
 
In regards to item 11.2 on your December 12 agenda, we would encourage each of you to
view the attached YouTube video produced by the Historical Society of Santa Rosa. It
provides an up-to-date overview of the history of the City’s efforts in historic preservation
along with the history of the Cultural Heritage Board. We believe it will provide important
context before voting on any changes to the Landmark Alteration process.
 
A Brief History of Historical Resource Preservation in the City of Santa Rosa
 
 
Thank you for your time doing this,
 
Denise Hill, Board Member
https://historicalsocietysantarosa.org/

 

mailto:faire@sonic.net
mailto:planningcommission@srcity.org
mailto:jjones@srcity.org
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2Fwatch%3Fv%3DfiKEviHbz18&data=05%7C02%7CMBrown%40srcity.org%7C48618457f0224a468d4008dd161da8b3%7C0d511985462e4402a0b038e1dadf689e%7C1%7C0%7C638691038872840729%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Bo0i%2BT70vEP0%2FRIIQ%2Bu1rKRQWlJT8vOeHAIg9DDeVEc%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fhistoricalsocietysantarosa.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7CMBrown%40srcity.org%7C48618457f0224a468d4008dd161da8b3%7C0d511985462e4402a0b038e1dadf689e%7C1%7C0%7C638691038872868045%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=L%2Bxl094jul9KuOiByO69G05y%2FI%2B7I0wtGkE7xdFHE5s%3D&reserved=0


From: oldbldgs@sonic.net
To: _PLANCOM - Planning Commission
Cc: Denise Hill; "Brian Meuser"; "Cappie Garrett"; diana@preservationplans.com; bryanmuch@gmail.com
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Comments On Planning Commission Agenda Item 11.2
Date: Wednesday, December 11, 2024 1:05:34 PM

Mark DeBacker, architect.
711 Howard Street (proposed Benton’s Addition Historic District)
Appointed to CHB (Vice Chair) 2009-2021
 
Good afternoon,
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the potential changes to the Landmark
Alteration Review process and reconfiguration of the Boards for that review.
 
Regarding Agenda Item 11.2 PUBLIC HEARING - LANDMARK ALTERATION PROCESS
IMPROVEMENTS AND CULTURAL HERITAGE BOARD AND DESIGN REVIEW BOARD
CONSOLIDATION
In my time on the Cultural Heritage Board, we always sought to find a path forward for the
applicant that would have the least financial impact and avoid the need to delay the project
with additional hearings or requirements.  I have the following comments regarding the
proposed changes:

1. I am deeply concerned about the qualifications (with no offense intended) of the
Director of Planning and Economic Development, the Zoning Director and the
composition of the Design Review Board/future DRPB. The significance of a property
goes beyond it’s appearance and specialized knowledge of Native American history,
the Spanish/Mexican era, the area’s historical figures/families and architectural
styles is needed in order to inform decisions about a site’s significance and the
appropriateness of proposed alterations. There was a time when City Staff and CHB
had the qualified staff/appointees to make these decisions, but sadly, that is not the
case currently.

2. I fully support Denise Hill’s comments on the Landmark Alteration Guidelines –
Demolition, and Chapter 20-58, HISTORIC AND CULTURAL PRESERVATION.

3. Brian Meuser is also correct that the fee issue MUST be resolved if the City plans to
maintain its commitment to our older neighborhoods and key properties.

4. Brian Meuser is likewise correct regarding the difficulties in getting qualified Board
Members due to District elections. Qualified Boards are key to obtaining State and
Federal grants and Certified Local Government (CLG) certification, not to mention
good day to day decisions on this City’s historic fabric.

5. Mid-Century Modern (MCM) architecture is trending in popularity.  Santa Rosa is
blessed with remarkably intact neighborhoods and structures, (including City Hall).
In the early sixties, this town was thriving with large corporations choosing to locate
here. This was in part because of the climate, but also the pared down, modern

mailto:oldbldgs@sonic.net
mailto:planningcommission@srcity.org
mailto:faire@sonic.net
mailto:bmeuser@comcast.net
mailto:cappiegarrett@gmail.com
mailto:diana@preservationplans.com
mailto:bryanmuch@gmail.com


architecture that was creating new neighborhoods and community structures (the
Flamingo, Los Robles Lodge, The Astro Hotel, El Rancho Tropicana and the town
plaza, to name a few). These neighborhoods and the remaining resources have
recently become eligible for a National Register or Historic District listing. The new
DRPB will not have the ability that the CHB did to add new Districts or Resources to
the City lists. 

6.  A Certified Local Government (CLG) certification would open up annual grants for
preservation and related projects as well as other State support.  One of the often
overlooked aspects is that cities with CLG certification get to expedite construction
projects on an ongoing basis and particularly following a natural disaster. Reviews
that are otherwise required to go the State for approval (adding three months to
three years to the process) can be approved locally with a CLG certification.  To get
this certification, qualified professionals MUST be seated on the appropriate City
review boards.

7. At one time, the City had staff who were highly trained in preservation (Heather
Hines comes to mind). This was extremely beneficial to applicants.  When staff was
cut, this fell to the Board themselves, but expertise continued to slip away over
time.  If the City finds itself unable to hire staff with the needed expertise, I strongly
suggest that they lean on reports from qualified historians/preservation architects in
the community to provide summary reports on which the DRPB can make educated
decisions.

8. The current Design Review Board expressed their discomfort and lack of
qualifications for evaluating and recommending resolution of issues on the City’s
historical resources at their last meeting. Should the City proceed with merging the
Boards, I strongly suggest that City budget be annually allocated for a member of
City Staff and a Board Member to receive a full-day or more of training from the
California Office of Historic Preservation (SHPO) or the Advisory Council on Historic
Preservation (ACHP) on the proper use of the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards
for Rehabilitation and/or Section 106 Historical Review. Budget should be adequate
for at least one staff member assigned to this Board and one Board Member
annually and this training shall be one of the duties of the job/office.

9. As originally implemented, the CHB had a budget ($80,000 annually, as I recall) to
promote tourism and fund surveys needed to evaluate potential Historic Districts or
individual structures worthy of Local Listing/State Listing. An annual budget is
needed in order to evaluate new cultural resources as they become fifty years or
older, which now encompasses significant Mid-Century Modern structures in our
City.

Thank you for your consideration of these issues in your meeting today.
 
Mark A. DeBacker, architect. ICC, APTi, CSI



Historical Preservation Architect
OldBldgs@sonic.net  cell: 707.280.6609
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Jones, Jessica

From: Sher Ennis <sennis@aim.com>
Sent: Sunday, December 8, 2024 9:31 PM
To: Murray, Susie; Jones, Jessica
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Proposed Code changes related to Design Review and Preservation Board

Hello, 
 
Please excuse the lateness of this communication intended for inclusion in the 12/12/2024 Planning 
Commission meeting.  I hope these questions/comments/suggestions are received in the spirit of 
helpfulness I intend. 
 
§ 20-44.020.A  
Design Review required. Design Review is required for all telecommunication facilities, except those 
listed by this Chapter as exempt. The review authority conducting Design Review for minor facilities is the 
Zoning Administrator and the review authority conduction conducting Design Review for major facilities is 
the Design Review and Preservation Board. 
 
§ 20-50.070.A.1 and 20-50.070.A.2 
I request clarification regarding indemnification in this section.  Does the term "agents" include board 
members?  I've repeatedly asked if the City will defend board members who are doing their official 
duties in the event of a lawsuit from a member of of the public.  I've not been able to get a definitive 
answer, which has stopped me from applying to a Board in the past.  If board members are not 
considered "agents", I suggest adding "board members" to this section to incentivize participation. 
 
§ 20-52.030. TABLE 5-2 
Under the proposed changes, should the Type of Application responsibility at Director level still be 
"Projects that involve only minor exterior modifications and are not within an historic district."?  Won't 
the Director level review authority include historic districts with the new process proposed? 
 
§ 20-58.020.C. 
 
See Section 4.7 (Historic Properties and Districts) of the City's Design Guidelines in addition to the 
requirements of this Chapter. 
 
Design Guidelines Section 4.7 (Historic Properties and Districts) still refers to the "Cultural Heritage 
Board or Design Review Board".  It should be revised to reflect the new Design Review and 
Preservation Board (if approved). 
 
Also: The link in this section of the current online City Code to Section 4.7 is incorrect.  Rather than going 
to Design Guidelines, it takes a user to Unsafe Conditions in § 18-20.306.1.1.4-7, which refers to 
"Detached, dislodged or failing connections."   
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Although clearly outside the scope of the upcoming PC meeting, this should be corrected.   
 
§ 20-58.050.3 
 
A proposal or application to terminate or modify a landmark or preservation district designation shall be 
processed under the same rules and procedures required to designate a landmark or preservation district, 
and shall require the submittal of a historic resource survey prepared by a qualified professional. 
 
I'm not able to find a definition of qualified professional anywhere in the City Code.  Who is qualified?  Is 
there a list?  Perhaps this can be clarified in § 20-70.020. 
 
This requirement is extremely costly.  It seems inappropriate to require this for Non-Contributors, which are 
by definition not significant to the historic district.  I suggest this be re-worded to apply only to 
properties/structures designated as Contributors. 
 
§ 20-58.120.A. 
The Director of Planning and Economic Development is authorized to make any necessary edits to the 
Processing Review Procedures for Owners of Historic Properties to endure ensure that the document is 
maintained consistent with the City Municipal Code. 
 
§ 20-60.060.G. 
 
3. As it relates to historic and cultural preservation, the DRPB shall perform its duties in compliance with 
this Chapter and Chapter 20-58 (Historic and Cultural Preservation) and shall: 
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a. Conduct surveys, as needed, of neighborhoods, objects, places, sites, and structures within the City that 
may qualify or be eligible for designation as a landmark or preservation district; 
 
The process of conducting a survey for a preservation district is a tremendous amount of work, which may 
be why there have been no new districts since 2007.  This section seems to imply that board members will 
do the actual field work and compile the survey.  In the past I believe the Cultural Heritage Board was in an 
advisory position and did not do the actual survey.  Should the wording be "Oversee surveys" ? 
 
------------------------------------ 
 
The following document was difficult to notate.  I found several locations where the Cultural Heritage 
Board is still referenced.  Please forgive any difficulty you have in finding/following text. 
 
PROCESSING REVIEW PROCEDURES FOR OWNERS OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES 
Section III 
Appointed by the City Council, the seven-member Design Review and Preservation Board is comprised of 
citizen volunteers with at up to two members having special expertise in historic preservation.  
Should "at" be removed? 
 
Undertaking and updating historic inventories or surveys. 
See previous comments on this topic.  Does the City intend that DRPR board members will actually 
perform this work, or act in an advisory/oversight role? 
 
III. SANTA ROSA DESIGN REVIEW AND PRESERVATION BOARD 
Last paragraph in this section: 
Staff from the City’s Planning and Economic Development Department provide support for the Cultural 
Heritage Board Design Review and Preservation Board. 
 
IV. LANDMARKS AND PRESERVATION DISTRICTS 
Requests from property owners for designation of Landmarks and from neighborhood groups 
for designation of Preservation Districts are reviewed by the Cultural Heritage Board Design Review and 
Preservation Board; the actual designation itself is by City Council action. 
 
City Determination of Significance 
The concept of qualified professional comes up in the first paragraph - see earlier comments. 
The edited second sentence seems to read "The following criteria be considered in determining 
historical significance."  A word is missing here.  "criteria will/shall/should be"? 
 
Consultant Provides Information 
This is the first place I've found where an architectural historian is referenced.  Is this the qualified 
professional?  Are there other professions that can prepare this report?  Does the City maintain a 
list?  Is the City aware of the fees associated with this?  When I spoke with architectural historians in 
2018, the quotes for a Historic Resources Survey ranged from $4,000 to $12,000.  I'm sure they've 
gone up in the interim.  There should be very clear guidelines about when this is required.  This 
additional cost burden is likely to stop many projects in their tracks and incentivize property owners to do 
projects without benefit of permits.   
 
C. EXTERIOR CHANGES ONLY ARE REVIEWED 
The reason exterior changes are reviewed is to assure property owners and the neighborhood that the 
view from the street (the historic streetscape) will be maintained for future generations. 
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This statement has been pointed to in nearly every conversation I've had with property owners going 
through the landmark alteration process and is the root of much public ill will.  It specifies the view from the 
street, yet multiple neighbors have found that the new deck (or similar minor change) they want at the back 
of their house - not remotely visible from the street - required a landmark alteration permit.  In the 
Frequently Asked Questions section in the guidelines there's a statement that exempts "walkways, decks, 
etc., that are not readily visible from the public right-of-way."  This is the sort of inconsistency that should 
be studiously avoided in the future. 
 
D. WHAT PROJECTS REQUIRE A LANDMARK ALTERATION PERMIT 
Generally, any project that results in a change to a historic building needs will require a Landmark 
Alteration (LMA) Permit prior to doing any work. 
Remove the word "needs"? 
 
B. LANDMARK ALTERATION GUIDELINES - ADDITIONS 
7. For the predominant material of the addition, select a historic material, such as wooden siding or 
stucco, that is compatible with the historic materials of the original building.  Contemporary substitute 
materials, such as synthetic siding, are not acceptable. 
This statement doesn't recognize the addition of contemporary materials that are nearly identical to 
traditional wood siding in appearance.  One example of this is Hardie Artisan siding, which is made of 
concrete.  The profile and dimensions are virtually indistinguishable from wood,  hold paint for decades, 
and provide fire resistance.  I suggest this wording be reconsidered. 
 
C.  LANDMARK ALTERATION GUIDELINES - DEMOLITION 
c. Insignificant Accessory Buildings 
The City may approve the demolition of insignificant accessory buildings that are located 
on Landmark properties or within Preservation Districts.  The submittal of a historic resource 
survey, prepared by a qualified professional, such as an architectural historian, would be required in order 
to determine  if the structure is insignificant. 
Again - this will be a significant cost to the property owner, and will incentivize non-compliance.  The 
City should have staff that can make this determination in the vast majority of cases. 
 
2. Example Mitigation Measures 
d. Moving a Building Outside a Preservation District 
This alternative is in most cases is inappropriate... 
 
I.  LANDMARK ALTERATION GUIDELINES - PAINTING 
4. Brick that already has been painted, or any brick for that matter, should never under any 
circumstances be sandblasted, as this procedure will result in the failure (disintegration) of the 
material. Property owners are encouraged to consult with the with a qualified architectural historian 
regarding the heavy cleaning of brick. 
 
I. PROCEDURES FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL 
3. Design Review and Preservation Board Concept Design Review 
For larger, more complex projects, conceptual review with the Desing Design Review and 
Preservation Board is encouraged, in order to gather feedback early in the process. 
 
If any of these edits don't make sense (or if the email process mangles them), I'm happy to have a 
quick conversation. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
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~ Sher Ennis 
~ (707) 324-3112 
~ West End Historic District 
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Jones, Jessica

From: Corry Kanzenberg <ckanzenberg@gmail.com>
Sent: Sunday, January 12, 2025 12:03 PM
To: Jones, Jessica
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Comment for Feb. 4th Public Hearing, RE: Landmark Alteration Permits

Dear City Councilmembers, 
 
As a resident of the Historic West End district of Santa Rosa, I urge you to eliminate the Landmark Alteration Permit fee 
and make the process of obtaining a permit and making home improvements streamlined for residents. The current fees 
present undue burden on residents like myself and my partner, who have worked for local small businesses and 
nonprofits in Santa Rosa and the North Bay for a combined total of 37 years. We worked hard to purchase our home and 
want to sustainably maintain its upkeep, but the current Landmark Alteration Permit process presents excessive fees 
and a complex approvals process for regular working people in an already cost‐burdened housing market and inflated 
economy. 
 
Additionally, our home was built in 1973, which is well outside of the "period of historic significance" of the "1880s to 
the 1940s," as outlined by the City when the historic nature of the district was determined. It therefore not a Landmark 
and has no such historic value that should be subject to Landmark Alteration Permit process. 
 
We cannot afford excessive fees ranging from $8,000‐$10,000 for these permits, especially when the cost of the work 
itself is at least that much and more often, significantly higher. The long approvals process also presents a problem. 
 
In this market, the City should be making it easier for hard‐working residents to afford and sustain housing. Please 
consider eliminating the Landmark Alteration Permit fee and creating a process that takes weeks, not months, to 
complete reviews. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of this request. 
 
Sincerely, 
Corry Kanzenberg  




